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South Nyanza Sugar Company Limited
Annual report and Financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2020

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Background information

South Nyanza Sugar Company Limited, also known as SonySugar was established by the Act of Parliament
under Companies Act (Cap. 486) on 5 July 1976 as a public limited liability Company. The Company grows sugar
cane, manufactures and sell sugar. At cabinet level, the entity is represented by the Cabinet Secretary for
Agriculture, Livestock and Fisheries who is responsible for the general policy and strategic direction of the entity.
The entity is domiciled in Kenya.

Our Vision: To be the leading manufacturer of sugar and associated products in Africa.

Our Mission Statement: To manufacture high quality sugar and associated products.

Our values: The mission and vision of the Company shall be accomplished and realized by embracing the
following core values: Customer focus, Intrapreneurship, Teamwork, Timeliness, Integrity and Professionalism,
Social Responsibility and safety.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and to the date of this report were:

Charles Oyugi Owino Chairman

Stephen Ligawa Managing Director (Ag) — (Appointed 19.11. 2019).

James Oluoch Managing Director (Ag) — (02.05.2019 to 19.11. 2019).

James Wanjohi Alternate — Principal Secretary, Ministry of Agricuture-(Retired 03.02.2020)
David Kithale Alternate — Principal Secretary, Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock

Irrigation and Fisheries-(Appointed 03.02.2020).
Ms. Peninah Mukami Njunge Alternate - Cabinet Secretary, the National Treasury (Appointed

30.09.2019
Ms. Cheryl Majiwa Alternate - Cabinet Secretary-National Treasury (Retired on 30.09.2019).
Hon Winnie K. Njuguna Director
Hon. Jared O. K'Opiyo Director
Hon. Daniel L. Ole Seitai Director
Mr. Thomas M. Nyangi Director
Ms. Agnes C. Busienei Director
Ms. Dorice Donya Aburi Director
Ms. Helen Amina Director
Mr.James Maganda Director

The Directors and alternates continue in office in accordance with the provisions of the articles of association of
the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Stephen Ligawa Managing Director (Ag) — Appointed 19.11.2019
Samson Mbayi Head of Finance (Ag) Appointed 28.01.2020
Maurice Omondi Company Secretary-ICPSK Reg. No. 1386 Appointed 28.01.2020
Patrick Mugenya Head of Manufacturing (Ag) Appointed 19.11.2020
Ken Nyangwara Head of Marketing & Business Development (Ag)
Zakayo Gombe Oindo Head of Agriculture (Ag)

Peter Oguna Head of cane Production (Ag)

Dan Oyamo Head of Human Resources (Ag)

Dan Ooro Head of ICT (Ag)

Caroline Ochele Head of Procurement (Ag)

Kennedy O. Onyango Audit Manager
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
REGISTERED OFFICE

PO Box 107 - 40405
Sare-Awendo, Migori County,
KENYA

Tel:+254-20 8029201-3
+254 722 205 345/6/7
+254 733 333 348/9

Email:administration@sonysugar.co.ke
Website:www.sonysugar.co.ke
BANKERS

Co-operative Bank
P.O. Box 20818 - 00100
NAIROBI

Kenya Commercial Bank Ltd
P. O. Box 54 - 40400
SUNA

National Bank of Kenya Ltd
P. O. Box 41862 - 00200
NAIROBI

Barclays Bank of Kenya
P. O. Box 99 - 40200
KISl

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
Office of the Auditor General
Anniversary Towers

P.O. Box 30084 — 00100
NAIROBI.

COMPANY LAWYERS

1. Okongo,Wandago & Co Advocates 3. Otieno Ragot & Co Advocates 5. TRIPLEOKLAW
SUNA MIGORI P. O. Box 1003-40100 KISUMU P.O. Box 43170-
00100 NAIROBI
2. Otieno Yogo & Co Advocates 4. Moronge & Co Advocates
P. O. Box 2453-40100 Electricity House 9th Floor
KISUMU P. O. Box 44289-00100
NAIROBI
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr Stephen Ligawa
Managing Director (Ag.)




O T LA T L S Y S TP el O RGN Sy o 3
South Nyanza Sugar Company Limited .
Annual report and Financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2020

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

. v?

Ms Peninah Mukami
Rep. C.S. National Treasury

Mr David Kithale

Rep. LG Seate Corporanions Rep. P.S. MoA, LF&I

Directors’ qualifications and experience

SN | DIRECTOR DATE OF [ COUNTY  OF | HIGHEST  LEVEL  OF
APPOINTMENT ORIGIN EDUCATION
1 HON. CHARLES | 6.6.18 MIGORI MA, FINANCIAL
OYUGI OWINO (BOARD ECONOMICS
CHAIRMAN)
2 | MS. PENINAH | 30.09.19 KIAMBU MASTERS OF ARTS IN
MUKAMI NJUNG'E | (ALTERNATE TO PS, ECONOMICS
NATIONAL
TREASURY)
3 | MR. DAVID KITHALE | 03.02.2020 KITUI MASTERS IN
(ALTERNATE TO PS, AGRICULTURAL
PARENT MINISTRY) ECONOMICS.
4 | HON. WINNIE | 20.09.18 KIRINYAGA BA,  LEADERSHIP &
NJUGUNA (INDEPENDENT MANAGEMENT
DIRECTOR)
5 | HON. JARED | 20.09.18 MIGORI MBA, HUMAN RESOURCE
KOPIYO (INDEPENDENT MANAGEMENT
DIRECTOR)
6 | MR JAMES | 20.09.18 NYAMIRA MA, HUMAN RESOURCE
MAGANDA (INDEPENDENT MANAGEMENT
DIRECTOR)
7 | MRS. AGNES | 20.09.18 NAROK MA, EDUCATION
CHEPKEMOI (INDEPENDENT MANAGEMENT
BUSIENE] DIRECTOR)
8 | HON DANIEL | 20.09.18 NAROK DIP, POLITICAL SCIENCE
LESHAN OLE SEITAI | (INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR)
9 | MR THOMAS | 20.09.18 MIGORI MBA
NYANGI MWITA (INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR)
10 | MS. DORICE DONYA | 20.09.18 KISII DIP, MASS
ABURA (INDEPENDENT COMMUNICATION
DIRECTOR)
11 | MS. HELEN | 14.12.18 SIAYA MASTERS OF ARTS IN
ACHIENG AMINA (INDEPENDENT GENDER AND
DIRECTOR) DEVELOPMENT
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

7]

Stephen Ligawa
Managing Director (Ag)

Msc. Chemistry
. Bsc. Chemistry | Patrick Mugenya
Sasmson Mbayi Head of Manufacturing(Ag)
Head of Finance (Ag.) 3 9
' Bsc Mech. Eng.
MA (PPM)
Bcom Finance - CPA
Zakayo Gombe D8 Oyamo
Head of Agriculture(Ag) Head of Human Resources (Ag.)
Msc. Hort. Eng. BA
Bsc. Agric. Eng. HND Hum. Res. Mgt.
Mourice Omondi
Dantel Qoro
! Company Secretary (Ag)
Head of ICT (Ag) LLB Honors
MBA Strat. Mgt. Dip. in Law
BBA [MiS)
Caroline A. Ochelle
Kennedy Onyango
Head of Procurement(Ag)
Audit Manager MA Proc & Logistics
MBM Finam.:e Bsc Suppliers & Chain Mgt.
Bsc Accounting
CPA-K, ACCA
Ken Nyangwara
Peter Oguna Head of Marketing (Ag.)
Head of Cane Production {A.g) MBA Strat. Mgt.
Bsc Agriculture BBA (Marketing)
Dip in Business English
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

The year 2020 was the most difficult year in the history of our company. Though performance was at its lowest
as compared to the previous years, indicators still points to a better future following the strategies put in place to
revive the company.

Deteriorated state of the plant due to delayed maintenance and macro-economic uncertainty coupled with
COVID-19 pandemic adversely affected operational circumstances of the business impacting negatively on the
projected targets. The performance were majorly affected by disrupted cane supply to the factory due to unfair
competition, adverse weather conditions that affected the region and reduced operational efficiency occasioned
by plant stoppages.

During the year, operating environment was very challenging coupled with tough economic times. With the
strategic measures we have put in place, we strongly believe that we will navigate the shifting economic
landscape within the sugar industry and emerge strong in the financial year ending June 2021.

Implementation of the big 4 agenda

The Government's “Big Four agenda” of manufacturing, food security and health still remains our core agenda
as per the current strategic plan. The plan emphasizes on optimization and effectiveness aimed at achieving high
productivity. Factory rehabilitation remains a major activity towards achieving our plan. Other activities include
improved health care for staff and medical camps to the general public, improved housing facilities to the staff,
increasing area under cane through turnaround strategy of increasing sugar production through enhanced
efficiency and effective Management Process.

Macroeconomic Environment

According to Kenya Bureau of statistics and the economic survey 2020, most of the economic activities have so
far been slowed down by restrictions resulting from containment and cessation of sections of the population, the
nationwide curfew, and the stoppage of international passenger travel.

The effect has seen the economic growth revised downwards from a previous projection of 6.2 per cent to 2.5
per cent.

This is on the back of the current slowdown in major sectors of the economy that have suffered the brunt of the
coronavirus, with tourism, aviation, non-food retail sectors and manufacturing facing the highest exposure to
financial distress. Chemicals industries, media, oil and gas, mining, and agriculture are also feeling the impact of
the crisis, which has hit the local economy hard. The government has cut on its spending to channel funds
towards containing the virus.

The global economy is projected to remain suppressed in 2020 because of the slowdown in industrial output,
weak business confidence, and increased trade tensions, even before the rapid transition of the coronavirus
disease into a worldwide pandemic.

Strategic focus

In addressing the current challenges, Directors are emphasizing on strategic and transformative approach
aimed at increasing productivity, galvanize commitment, and drive high performance.

Results, Business & Operating Environment

With the Kenyan economy being market-based with a liberalized external trade system, The Company was badly
affected by unfair business practices. Nevertheless we remain positive and we will continue to implementation
our wide-ranging corporate strategy in line with Government agenda.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (Continued)

The year 2020 was not good for the business, the company gross turnover was Kshs 411 as compared to Shs
3,097million in the previous year. This reflected decrease of 87% over last year. Volume of cane reduced by 68%
to 133,270 metric tons compared to last year's figure of 420,486. Sugar production also reduced to 4,394 metric
tons compared to the previous year's figures of 31,342 tons while the gross loss was Shs.953 million compared
to the previous year's gross loss Shs 252 million.

The Sugar Industry

The status and importance of sugar as a source of livelihood and viable economic concern is under threat from
various challenges and factors in the sugar industry and the country as a whole. Major threats include depressed
sugar prices in the face of dumped imports and low productivity levels leading to low sugar yields, capacity under-
utilization and, hence, low income to farmers. This in turn negatively affects cane husbandry practices.

Through new legislations, we envisage fair competition and growth in the coming year.

Corporate Governance

During the year, there were changes in the composition of the Board. Director David Kithale was appointed on
03.02.2020 replacing Director James Wanjohi and Director Peninah Mukami Njung’e was appointed on
30.09.2019 replacing Director Cheryl Majiwa. Directors are satisfied that the Company has to the best of their
knowledge, complied with all applicable laws and conducted its business affairs in accordance with the law. |
wish to sincerely thank all the Board members for their contributions during the year under review,

As a Board, strengthening decision making processes throughout the organization remains key. This will also be
achieved through operationalization of short, medium and long term strategies in line with the Government
regulations.

Conclusion

The future outlook of the company remains bright as the strategies are in place to ensure successful factory
rehabilitation that will lead to optimization of the factory performance in the year to come.

On behalf of the Board of Directors and Management of SonySugar, we acknowledge your patience and support
during this difficult year as we believe we are on the path to recovery.

2020

Hon. Charles Oyugi Owino
Chairman, Board of Directors
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REPORT OF THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

The year ended June 30, 2020 marks the second consecutive year of low performance under extremely
difficult condition for all public mills and more particularly south Nyanza Sugar company limited.

This is as a result of delayed maintenance which has not been done for the last six year and depressed
sugar prices as a result of unregulated sugar imports during the year. The impact is reduced revenue
and high cost of production.

During the year we also experienced several challenges such as intense competition and employee
union related challenges. However, with the outlined strategic plan and scheduled factory rehabilitation
for next financial year, we are confident we are on the path to recovery.

Financial Performance

Cane milled during the year was 133,270 tons against a budget of kshs 580,000 realizing 4,394 and
6,170 tons of sugar and molasses respectively. Gross sugar sales posted was Ksh.411 Million against
a budgeted sugar sales of Ksh.4,931 million, a drop of 93%. The Company’s total operating costs
aggregated to 1,900 Million resulting in Ksh. 1,501 Million operating loss. This compares unfavorably
to the previous year 2019, where the operating loss was Kes. 1,194 Million, realized from gross sales
of Kes. 3,097 Million.

Revenue

The price of sugar per ton was highly elastic during the year under review. It oscillated between the
highest range averaging Kes. 102,141 per ton in the month of May 2020 and falling by 35% to the
lowest average of Kes. 48,715 per ton in the month of September 2019. This was attributed to high
volumes of sugar imports in the market and staff unrests. The period that the sugar prices skyrocketed
coincided with the Government crackdown on illegal and illicit sugar imports. The good prices were felt
for approximately one month during the year under review, June 2020.

Production Costs

Unpredictable factory availability led to high cost of production. Per ton cost of production of sugar
averaged Ksh. 406,527 (2019: Kes. 127,842). This is attributable to high fixed costs occasioned by
low capacity utilization and low factory efficiency.

The company’s stability is heavily deepened on the ongoing factory rehabilitation. The lower than
optimal production and the current state of the plant will be addressed by the ongoing factory repairs
aimed at bringing the factory back to profitability and a healthy working capital.

Operating Volumes

As in the previous year, frequent factory breakdowns majorly contributed to the under performance during the
year with negative effects on low cane volumes, low sugar extraction ratio and unpredictable factory availability.
Cane milled during the year was 133,270 tons (2019: 420,486 tons). This was milled to realize 4,394 tons (2019:
31,342) of sugar.

Sugar and molasses sold in the period under review were 4,540 tons and 6,170 tons (2019: 31,351 tons and
15,037 tons) respectively.

Agriculture

Factory rehabilitation will have to go with the expansion of area under cane in order to support the improved
factory capacity. Cane area at close of business was 10,725 hectares made up of 8,466 hectares under
contracted farmers and 2,259 hectares in the Nucleus Estate. This is not in line with a requirement of 17,600
hectares annually with a yield of 75 tons per ha and a sucrose percent cane of 13.45 needed to attain 2,700 tons
of cane daily raw material supply to the factory.

Milling cane delivered to the factory during the year was 133,270. Of these, 87,890 tons (65%) was delivered
from the Nucleus Estate, 45,380 tons (35%) from the Out grower farmers. To address possible drop in raw
material, the Company has embarked on vigorous cane development drive with an aim to developing 6,000 Ha
under cane over the next three years, at a projected cost of Kes. 2.25 Billion.

9
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South Nyanza Sugar Company Limited
Annual report and Financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

REPORT OF THE MANAGING DIRECTOR (continued)

The initiative is to secure the primary source of raw material that will support factory expanded capacity as well
as empowering the Out grower farmers in the region. The Company continues to directly engage sugar cane
farmers and key Industry stakeholders in an effort to rally farmers to increase planted cane area.

Factory Performance

Despite insufficient funds, the factory was shut down in May 2020 to carry out interim repairs using the available
resources and scrap materials. The exercise is projected to come to an end by end of august 2020, guaranteeing
factory efficiency at around 85%. The partial repairs in the key sections will take longer because no significant
additional labour has been recruited for this exercise.

Despite limited resources used to undertake this exercise, the condition of the plant is expected to improve
reasonably, resulting in better equipment availability and efficiency hence the likelihood of sugar recovery ratio
going up significantly.

Market

Sugar has been one of the most volatile agricultural commaodities, constituting a real challenge both for market
participants and for policymakers to deal with its instability. In the domestic market, sugar prices remained largely
depressed in the year under review due to uncontrolled importation of duty free and alleged contraband sugar
into the market. The price per ton of sugar increased by 13% from an average net of Kes. 73,188 (Gross: Kes.
84,898) in 2018/2019 to an average net of Kes. 63,713 (Gross: Kes. 73,722) in the year under review.

Human Capital

As in the previous year, the company has been faced serious cash flow challenges to the levels of being unable
to meet key obligations including salaries and wages. The Company however has been paying part salaries to
mitigate the impact of delayed wages. This has led to the realization of relative calm among the workforce thus
raising the confidence levels among the stakeholders. This exercise shall continue until the situation improves
after the much awaited Annual Plant Maintenance. SonySugar employees are among the highest qualified in the
sector with various professional accolades attained on behalf of the Company.

i_itigation, Legal Exposure & Compliance with Laws

During the year under review, cases against the company went down significantly due to measure put in place
by the management. From the previous period, the Company still has several cases filed against it for breach of
cane growing contracts stretching back over 10 years. The cases arose as a result of unrealized proposed
expansion of the factory in early 2000, in which cane area was expanded to justify the proposed expansion. Due
to the unrealized expansion of the factory, the Company was not able to harvest cane that was grown in several
areas as a consequence of which such fields went to waste for which farmers plus the Company also suffered
loss. Lately contract breaches and fraud in various forms has resulted in additional cases.

Initiatives in place to combat litigation have worked in reducing fraud. These include: amongst them being criminal
prosecution for fraud, outreach programs to farmers for amicable resolution of disputes and new framework of
managing cane contracts amongst others. Significant progress has been made in the retrieval and availability of
information and records, scaling up of witness presentation in court plus production of relevant documents and
the co-operation with the local administration for amicable resolution of potential legal disputes has been secured.

Management has also reached out to several complaints, who having lodged claims against the Company, have
upon discussions, agreed and have withdrawn such cases filed against the Company. Measures put in place are
expected to reduce the numbers to the limits that were manageable and bring into control litigation against the
Company. Management expects that the unscrupulous lawyers who have been pursuing outright fraudulent shall
be prosecuted after the ongoing investigations by Directorate of Criminal Investigation are concluded and shall
reduce cases to only genuine ones. It would be prudent to mention here that since the investigations on this
matter was commenced, the number of new cases have dropped considerably from hundreds per week to less
than ten in a month.

10
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REPORT OF THE MANAGING DIRECTOR (continued
The Big 4 Agenda

The Big Four agenda continues to drive the Government agenda with the four pillars being manufacturing,
universal healthcare, affordable housing and food security. South Nyanza Sugar Company Ltd is involved mainly
in three of the Big Four agenda namely, Manufacturing, universal healthcare and food security

Under the Food Security Pillar, our focus is increase in sugar cane output, grower incomes and sugar production
through increase in investment in sugar cane development and planted cane area. This is achieve by supporting
farmers in cane development and training.

On the Manufacturing Agenda, as a Company, we are putting effective strategies that will guarantee efficient and
steady factory aimed at delivering budgeted targets.

On the Universal Healthcare Agenda, the Company’'s medical centre is strategically placed provide health
services to over 1800 households within the sugar belt. The services cover affordable clinical services, ante-natal
and post-natal services, and comprehensive care services for HIV/AIDS patients. This is further supported health
care outreach programs in collaboration with various partners including County Health Services in areas of Public
health, HIV/AIDS, lifestyle disease, Maternal and Child health management within the grower and trading
community it serves.

Future Outlook

The Strategic focus in the financial year 2020/21 shall target the following broad areas which shall be key drivers
in the realization of initiatives under the Big 4 Agenda:

1. Agriculture Operations

Of threat to cane yield and productivity is unfair business practices by our competitors through cane poaching
menace. In addition, the continued lack of fertilizer in the market shall have drastic impact on future cane
yields. To mitigate this, the Company has embarked on an aggressive cane development targeting over
6,000 Ha progressively over the next 3 years. To compliment cane production activities and farmer incomes,
we established tree nurseries and distribute seedlings for fruit trees mainly macadamia and avocado, to
diversify grower revenues.

2. Information Communication Technology

ICT still remains an important pillar in driving competitiveness. SonySugar ICT investment in two key ERP
systems i.e. the Agricultural Management System (AMS) and the SAP ERP system support the core business
and drive efficiency and productivity enhancement in the organization. In the following year, the company will
channel its investment in supporting establishment of the Data Centre and network resources infrastructure
to assure data accuracy and infrastructure availability and reliability. This projects could not be realised in
the year under review due to low performance.

3. Business Environment
Due to unfair business practices, the retail price of sugar has fallen below the breakeven point, the driving
factor being unregulated sugar imports by private millers. The Company is currently working on strategic
fronts to remain competitive in the market despite the current market challenges.

4. Manufacturing

Elaborate plan is in place to strategically strengthen the plant through regular maintenance to guarantee
steady performance in line with big 4 agenda.

The ongoing factory rehabilitation is a step towards that direction that will guarantee effectiveness of the plant
and optimal capacity utilization.

11
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REPORT OF THE MANAGING DIRECTOR (continued)
Conclusion
On behalf of Management, | wish to thank the Board of Directors of South Nyanza Sugar Company Limited for

continuous support and for guiding the business towards a recovery path.

| congratulate all our stakeholders and shareholders for their unwavering support to the business during this
difficult year. | appreciate all staff for their resilient, farmers, trade customers and suppliers for standing with us.

Managing Director (Ag)

12
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STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

The company was at its lowest in history in terms of revenue generation due to low level of activities and from
input output perspective. The Annual Planned Maintenance that was programmed within the year was not
achieved on target and as a result, the Company did not achieve a 15% Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) as
per the strategic plan targets/projection. As in the previous year, contributing this was unfavourable operating
environment were;

1. Aggravated cane shortage due to cane theft by our competitors affecting plant capacity utilization,
product availability and revenue generation. Apart from intense cane theft, yields were also on a
downward trend, largely due to inadequate/erratic supply of fertilizer.

Poor cash flow and plant fatigue as a result of prolonged running without comprehensive maintenance,
shelved or delayed development plans,

Unstable and low sugar prices from dumping and counterfeiting in the major part of the period
occasioning significant price depression and reduced revenue.

el el

As a result of the above challenges, the company did not achieve the following strategic objectives during the
year ended 30" June 2020:

1. increase market share of sugar market from 12% to 15%

2. Developing new products aimed at satisfying existing and emerging consumer needs that would the
revenue streams.

3. Due to constrained cash flows, operationalisation of efficiency in business processes covering cane
production, soil management, propagation of improved cane varieties, improved extension services,
reorganization of extension services among others were not properly funded as a result of operational
circumstances. These activities are important in enhancing milling and sugar recovery efficiencies

4. Planned diversification investments were never realized due to lack of funding, this denied the business
additional revenue streams that would have cushioned it against fluctuation of sugar prices.
5. Sugar production was below the target throughout the period. This adversely impacted sales volumes,
revenue generation and profitability, a situation that put the company in an adverse financial position.
Unfavorable operating circumstances led to the buildup material arrears including the following affecting staff

and government loans as at close of the year:

No. Description Kshs “000”

1. | Payroll Salaries, payroll remittables and statutory payments in arrears 1,175,553
2. | Cane related payment | Harvesters, weeders and land development contractors 59,162
3. | Farmers arrears On account of cane delivered to factory 600,000

Irrespective of the above challenges, the future outlook is good. The ongoing factory repairs is expected to bring
operations to near normalcy in the following year. Post maintenance, efficiency is expected to improve from below
30% to over 75% during the year 2021. Effective cost containment measures have also been put in place.

To achieve optimal utilization of human capital, the company is in the process of implementing appropriate
capacity building and up skilling and at the same time focusing on results management. This will help to mitigate
the high level of staff turnover that was occasioned by reduced levels of operations during the year ending
30.06.2020.

The company is also addressing the variables that determine the quality of cane such as delay in transportation,

overstay in the yard amongst others, efforts are being made to revamp targeted unit processes in the front end
of the sugar plant and process area to cover lost grounds in the year ending 30.06.2020.

13
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STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance is the process and structure by which Companies are directed, controlled and held
accountable in order to achieve long term value to shareholders taking cognizance of the interest of other
stakeholders.

The Board of Directors of South Nyanza Sugar Company Limited (hereinafter SonySugar) is responsible for the
governance of the Company and is accountable to the shareholders and stakeholders in ensuring that the
Company complies with the laws and the highest standards of business ethics and corporate governance.
Accordingly, the Board attaches high importance to generally accepted corporate governance practices and has
embraced the internationally developed principles and code of best practice of good corporate governance.

Board of Directors

The roles and functions of the Chairman and the Managing Director are distinct and their respective
responsibilities clearly defined. The Board comprises of eleven (11) Directors nine (9) of whom are non-executive
directors including the Chairman. Alternate Directors from the parent ministry and National Treasury also sit in
the Board. The Board defines the Company’s strategies, objectives and values and ensures that procedures and
practices are set in place to ensure effective control over strategic, financial, operational and compliance issues.

The Directors come from various parts of the country and are professionals in various fields. They have thus
brought a wealth of experience, expertise and knowledge in the various disciplines that they come from. Details
of the Directors are as follows:-

SN | DIRECTOR DATE OF | COUNTY  OF | HIGHEST LEVEL OF
APPOINTMENT ORIGIN EDUCATION
1 HON. CHARLES | 6.6.18 MIGORI MA, FINANCIAL
OYUGI OWINO (BOARD ECONOMICS
CHAIRMAN)
2 MS. PENINAH | 30.09.19 KIAMBU MASTERS OF ARTS IN
MUKAMI NJUNG'E (ALTERNATE TO PS, ECONOMICS
NATIONAL
TREASURY)
3 MR. DAVID KITHALE | 03.02.2020 KITUI MASTERS IN
(ALTERNATE TO PS, AGRICULTURAL
PARENT MINISTRY) ECONOMICS.
4 HON. WINNIE | 20.09.18 KIRINYAGA BA, LEADERSHIP &
NJUGUNA (INDEPENDENT MANAGEMENT
DIRECTOR)
5 HON. JARED | 20.09.18 MIGORI MBA, HUMAN RESOURCE
KOPIYO (INDEPENDENT MANAGEMENT
DIRECTOR)
6 MR. JAMES | 20.09.18 NYAMIRA MA, HUMAN RESOURCE
MAGANDA (INDEPENDENT MANAGEMENT
DIRECTOR)
7 MRS. AGNES | 20.09.18 NAROK MA, EDUCATION
CHEPKEMOI (INDEPENDENT MANAGEMENT
BUSIENEI DIRECTOR)
8 HON DANIEL | 20.09.18 NAROK DIP, POLITICAL SCIENCE
LESHAN OLE SEITAI | (INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR)
9 MR. THOMAS | 20.09.18 MIGORI MBA
NYANGI MWITA (INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR)
10 MS. DORICE DONYA | 20.09.18 KISl DIP, MASS
ABURA (INDEPENDENT COMMUNICATION
DIRECTOR)
11 MS. HELEN | 14.12.18 SIAYA MASTERS OF ARTS IN
ACHIENG AMINA (INDEPENDENT GENDER AND
DIRECTOR) DEVELOPMENT
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Statement of corporate governance (continued)

In line with the provisions of Mwongozo Code of Conduct, the Board of Directors strived to ensure that the
Company complies with the provisions of the constitution and all applicable laws, regulations, codes and
applicable standards. The Board has put in place internal procedures and monitoring systems to promote
compliance with strategic objectives of the Company and submit compliance reports on all statutory obligations
to the respective Government Departments/Agencies within the specified timelines.

In further compliance with the provisions of Mwongozo Code of Conduct, the Board did establish the requisite
Board Committees chaired by members with requisite qualifications and experience (for such committees) so as
to ensure that the overall strategic objectives of the Company are achieved.

During the period, all Board members were trained on Mwongozo and Corporate Governance so as to equip
them with the requisite skills and tools for the effective Management of the Organization.

Except for direction and guidance on general policy, the Board delegates authority of its day-to-day business to
Management through the Managing Director. The Board nonetheless is responsible for the stewardship of the
Company and assumes responsibilities for effective control over the Company.

The Company, being a State Corporation, the Inspector General of State Corporations attends both Board and
Board Committees for oversight and advisory purposes in accordance with the State Corporations Act.

The Company Secretary attends all Committee and Board meetings. His role is to advise the Board on all
corporate governance matters as well as prevailing statutory requirements coupled with taking minutes at all
Board meetings/functions.

Board Meetings

The Board holds meetings on a regular basis as per approved Board calendar. Special meetings are called when
it is deemed necessary to do so in order to handle an urgent matter that cannot otherwise await a normal Board
meeting. In the period, three special Board meetings were held purposely to conduct the shortlisting exercise
and interviews for the holder of the position of the Managing Director.

During the period under review, meetings held were as follows:-

Committee Type Mandated Actual
Main Board gsg;l:lr g Z
- Specal |2 2
- Specel |2 d
o Spesal |2 !
- Soecial |2 !

Committees of the Board
The Board set up the following Board Committees which meet under well-defined terms of reference set by the

Board. This was intended to facilitate efficient decision making of the Board in the discharge of its mandate and
obligations.
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Statement of corporate governance (continued)

Board Audit & Risk Committee

The composition of the Audit and Risk Committee comprised the following:

1)  Mr. Thomas Nyangi - Director, Chairman.

2) Ms. Peninah Mukami - Alternate to CS, National Treasury

3) Mr. Daniel Seitai - Director, Member

4) Ms. Agnes Busienei - Director, Member

5) Ms. Theodora Gichana - In attendance -by invitation (Representative to

Inspectorate, State Corporations)

This is one of the mandatory committees mentioned in the Mwongozo Code of Governance for State
Corporations. The Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its corporate governance responsibilities and in
particular to;

a) Review effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system to ensure adherence to the framework for
financial regulations.

b) Provide comprehensive view of the organization’s risk profile to the Board of Directors.

¢) Review compliance with relevant legislations, policies and procedures.

d) Liaise with the external auditors on Company’s Audit matters.

e) Review the adequacy of accounting, financial and operational controls.

f)  Coordinating decision making to ensure consistency in the risk management process.

g) Monitor the on-going performance of the Enterprise Risk Management Process.

h) Review completeness and accuracy of financial statements and disclosures in accordance with financial
reporting standards and applicable rules and regulations.

i)  Review whether the Company has adopted appropriate accounting policies and, where necessary, made
appropriate estimates and judgments.

i) Clarity and completeness of disclosures in the financial statements and consider whether the disclosures
made are set properly in context.

k) Related information presented with the financial statements, including the business review, and corporate
governance statements relating to the audit and to risk management.

I)  Ensure that strategic plan and strategic risks are periodically reviewed.

General Purpose Committee

The composition of the General Purpose Committee comprised of the following:

1)  Mr. Daniel Seita - Director, Chairman.

2)  Mr. David Kithale - Alternate to PS, Ministry Agriculture, Livestock, irrigation and Fisheries
3) Hon. Jared K'Opiyo - Director, member

4) Ms. Dorice Donya - Director, member

5) Ms. Theodora Gichana - In attendance-by invitation-(Representative to

Inspectorate, State Corporations)
The Committee reviews all staff related policies and provides recommendations on issues relating to all human
resource matters including, career progression, performance management, training needs, job transfers, staff
recruitment, staff placements, promotions, demotions, discipline and staff welfare.

Board Finance Committee

The composition of the Finance Committee comprised the following:

1. Mr James Maganda - Director, Chairman.

2. Ms Winnie Njuguna - Director, member

3. Ms. Peninah Mukami - Alternate to CS, National Treasury and planning
4. Ms. Helen Amina - Director, member

5. Ms. Theodora Gichana ™’ - In attendance-by invitation-(Representative to

Inspectorate, State Corporations)
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Statement of corporate governance (continued)

The Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities relating to the Company’s finance,
procurement, investment strategies, projects and related activities.
Operations Committee

The composition of the Operations Committee comprised the following:

1. Ms. Agnes Busienei - Director, Chairlady.

2. Mr. David Kithale - Alternate to PS, Ministry Agriculture, Livestock, irrigation and
Fisheries

3. Mr. Thomas Nyangi - Director, member

4. Hon. Winnie Njuguna - Director, member

5. Ms. Theodora Gichana - In attendance-by invitation-(Representative to

Inspectorate, State Corporations)

The Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities on operations issues such as agriculture,
factory performance, marketing and related issues.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Company has established a Risk Management Policy and Framework which enables Management to
consider Risk Implications in all Investments Decisions. This has helped the Company minimize exposure to
Risks that may impede efforts to achieve its set Strategic Objectives.

Effective Risk Management Process has been achieved through continuous risk assessment by the respective
functional Heads and put in place mitigation strategies on risks facing the Organization.

Internal Audit Department also plays a major role in continuous monitoring as well as identification of emerging
risks and provide timely reports to the Board Audit and Risk Committee on the effectiveness of Risk Management
Process.

The Company has defined procedures and financial controls to ensure the reporting of complete and accurate
accounting information. These cover systems for obtaining authority for all transactions and for ensuring
compliance with the laws and regulations that have significant financial implications. In reviewing the
effectiveness of the internal control system, the Board takes into account the results of work carried out to audit
and review the activities of the Company.

The Board also considers management accounts for each quarter, reports from each Board Committee, annual
budgetary proposals, major and emerging issues and strategic opportunities for the Company.

Creating Shareholders’ Value

In order to assure shareholders on the Company’s commitment to activities that create and enhance shareholder
value, the Board signs a performance contract with the government and sets corporate performance strategies
with Management. The Board also continues to perform an annual evaluation exercise to review and audit its
role, success and areas of improvements so as to meet the challenges envisaged at the beginning of each year.
Directors’ Emoluments and Loans

The aggregate amount of emoluments paid to directors during the financial year 2018/2019 is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements. Non-executive directors were paid sitting allowances for every meeting
attended, in compliance with the relevant laws and guidelines as issued by the Government.

There were no arrangements for the directors to acquire benefits through the acquisition of the Company’s
shares.
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Statement of corporate governance (continued)

Directors’ qualifications and experience for the year 2019/2020

SN | DIRECTOR DATE OF [ COUNTY OF | HIGHEST  LEVEL  OF
APPOINTMENT ORIGIN EDUCATION
1 HON. CHARLES | 6.6.18 MIGORI VA, FINANCIAL
OYUGI OWINO (BOARD ECONOMICS
CHAIRMAN)
2 | MS. PENINAH | 30.09.19 KIAMBU MASTERS OF ARTS IN
MUKAMI NJUNG'E | (ALTERNATE TO PS, ECONOMICS
NATIONAL
TREASURY)
3 | MR. DAVID KITHALE | 03.02.2020 KITUI MASTERS IN
(ALTERNATE TO PS, AGRICULTURAL
PARENT MINISTRY) ECONIMICS.
4 | HON. WINNIE | 20.09.18 KIRINYAGA BA, LEADERSHIP &
NJUGUNA (INDEPENDENT MANAGEMENT
DIRECTOR)
5 | HON. JARED | 20.09.18 MIGORI MBA, HUMAN RESOURCE
KOPIYO (INDEPENDENT MANAGEMENT
DIRECTOR)
6 |MR. JAMES | 20.09.18 NYAMIRA MA, HUMAN RESOURCE
MAGANDA (INDEPENDENT MANAGEMENT
DIRECTOR)
7 | MRS. AGNES | 20.09.18 NAROK MA, EDUCATION
CHEPKEMOI (INDEPENDENT MANAGEMENT
BUSIENEI DIRECTOR)
8 | HON DANIEL | 20.09.18 NAROK DIP, POLITICAL SCIENCE
LESHAN OLE SEITAI | (INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR)
9 |MR. THOMAS | 20.09.18 MIGORI MBA
NYANGI MWITA (INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR)
10 | MS. DORICE DONYA | 20.09.18 KISII DIP, MASS
ABURA (INDEPENDENT COMMUNICATION
DIRECTOR)
11 | MS. HELEN AMINA | 14.12.18 SIAYA MASTERS OF ARTS IN
(INDEPENDENT GENDER AND
DIRECTOR) DEVELOPMENT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The table below analyses the performance of the company during the year ended 30.06.2020

ACTUAL
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
OPERATIONS DATA 2019-2020 2019-2020 2018-2019
Tons of Cane Milled 133,270 580,000 420,486
Tons of Sugar Bagged 4,394 56,840 31,342
Tons of Sugar Sold 4,540 56,840 31,351
Tons of Molasses Sold 6,170 16,855 15,037
FINANCIAL DATA ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL
Sales Revenue (Sugar) 353,973 4 931,035 2,674,078
Other Revenue 54,671 72,719 63,508
Stock Movement (7,492) 63,688 (48,233)
Total Revenue 401,152 5,067,442 2,689,353
Total Direct Costs 642,191 3,206,633 1,999,794
Total In-Direct Costs 1,259,612 1,708,822 1,896,136
Total Operating Costs 1,901,803 4,915,455 3,895,930
Operating Profit/(Loss) (1,500,651) 151,986 (1,206,577)
Finance Costs 155,657 101,317 151,765
Pre Tax Profit/Loss (1,656,308) 50,670 (1,358,342)
Corporation Tax - (15,201)
Profit/Loss After Tax (1,656,308) 35,469 (1,358,342)

The Company operated under very difficult conditions in the year under review. The year was characterized by
high cost of production and high number of plant stoppages occasioned by breakdowns and cane outages, these
resulted in lower production volumes.

A total of 133,270 tons of cane was milled during the year, which indicates a decrease against a budget of
580,000 by 446,730 tons and less than same period last year volume of 420,486 tons by 287,216 tons.

Actual sugar bagged during the year was 4,394 tons which is a shortfall égainst the budget by 52,446 tons, and
also below last year by 26,948 tons. The low volumes of sugar bagged was occasioned by lower sugar
recoverylyield per ton of cane processed arising largely from stale cane that was occasioned by yard staleness
during cane accumulation; factory downtime due to problems with boiler tubes and other plant breakdowns.
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(Management discussion and analysis continued)

Revenue

Net sales revenue realized in the year was Kes. 354 Million and Kes.54.7 million from sugar and other revenue
respectively. This falls far below the budgeted revenue of Kes.4.9 Billion and Kes.72.1 million for sugar and other
revenue respectively.

Operating Volumes

The Company milled 133,270 tons of cane in the year under review against a budget of 580,000 tons. This
performance was 77% under achievement on budget. Same period last year the Company milled 420,486 tons
of cane.

Sugar produced in the year was 4,394 tons against 56,840 tons budget. This was 92% under achievement on
budget, and is 26,948 tons less than 31,342 tons produced last year. This shortfall is due to lower conversion
efficiency, cane outage and milling of stale cane.

Sugar sold in the year was 4,540 tons against a budget of 56,840 tons which is 92% under achievement on
budget and less than last year sales of 31,351 tons by 26,811 tons.

Financial Performance

The total net turnover realized in the year was Kes. 353.9 million against a budget of Kes. 4.9 Billion which is
92.8% below the budget. The lower production and sales volumes in the year coupled with delayed investment
in alternative/additional revenue streams budgeted for contributed to this under achievement

During the year, the Company incurred a total operating cost of Kes. 1.9 Billion (Fixed cost component-Kes. 1.26
Billion) against a budgeted operating cost of Kes. 4.92 Billion (Fixed cost component-Kes. 1.71 Billion). This
resulted in an operating loss of Kes. 1,501 Million against a budgeted Operating profit of Kes. 152 million.
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Corporate Social Responsibility Statement

During the year, the company strived to meet corporate social responsibility obligations through undertaking
initiatives aimed at maintaining and sustaining the cordial relation and coexistence among the employees, the
local community and all stakeholders; as a dependable entity within the community. The Company thus upheld
ethical conducts and best professional practices with the welfare of the employees, the community and all
stakeholders, in mind.

In term of healthcare, in the wake of Covid-19 pandemic, the Company stationed hand washing points within the
Company premises, supplied hand sanitizing chemicals and provided face masks to all employees in bid to curb
infection and spread of the disease. SonySugar Medical Centre and SonySugar Comprehensive Care Unit was
open to the staff and members of the public at subsidized costs. The company’'s ambulance has been on standby
and responded to emergencies within the company and the community. SonySugar also has a vibrant St. Johns
Ambulance team which offered free first aid services during sporting activities, events and large gatherings within
the company and in the community.

Professionally, the company upheld ethical conducts and practices, and met regulatory obligations. We complied
with the spirit of our business policies such as availing treated water for events to the community, availing tender
opportunities to the youth with, the women and persons with disability with Access to Government Procurement
(AGPO) certification. On cohesion, inclusivity and diversity, the company upheld Access and Opportunities Act,
and ensured the workforce consisted of people from all cultures, religion, ethnicities and irrespective of age,
gender, marital status, sexual orientation or physical or mental disability.

On talent and career building, the Company offered opportunity to young professionals with various professional
backgrounds to volunteer as periodic staff to exercise their academic knowledge gained and acquire more
practical experience. Also, the company offered chances for young professionals from the Government’s one
year Internship programme in various departments.

On education, the Company offered trainings on behavior change to children of employees. The Company also
offered chances for industrial training for college and university students. Also, the Company continued to support
the SonySugar Nursery and SonySugar Complex schools by maintaining their physical environment, ensuring
their security and meeting the welfare requirement of teachers and all employees of the schools.

On environmental protection and disaster management, the Company intervened in fires within its nucleus
estates, out-grower zones and other areas within Migori County, using its own firefighting engine. During the
World Environment Day, the company organized a clean-up exercise within the residential estates.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements of South Nyanza Sugar Company
Limited (the ‘Company’) for the year ended 30 June 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the company is to grow sugar cane, manufacture and sell sugar with molasses as a by-
product.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the company is incorporated within the report of the Managing Director on pages 9 —
14.

Production and sales

The following are the comparative statistics of cane deliveries and sugar production for the year ended 30 June
2020.

Cane Deliveries (tons) 2020 2019
Nucleus estate

87,890 92,792
Outgrowers

45,380 327,694
Total 133,270 420,486
Sugar Produced (tons) 4,394 31,342
Rendement 3.49% 7.42%
DIVIDEND

The net loss for the year of Shs 1,656,308,000 (2019: net loss of Shs 1,358,342,000) has been added to
accumulated losses. The decision on dividend will be made at AGM.

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and to the date of this report are set out on page 2 of this report.
DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

The directors confirm that with respect to each director at the time of approval of this report:

a) there was, as far as each director is aware, no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditor is
unaware; and

b) each director had taken all steps that ought to have been taken as a director so as to be aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditor is aware of that information.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
TERMS OF APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

The Auditor General is mandated by law to audit South Nyanza Sugar Company Limited. This mandate was
initially delegated to Deloitte & Touche for the audit of financial year ended 30 June 2019 (subject to renewal) in
accordance to section 23 of the public Audit Act, 2015 which empowers the Auditor General to appoint an auditor
to audit on its behalf, but on request of the Deloitte & Touche, Office of the Auditor General continue as the
company'’s external auditors in accordance with section 29(1) Exchequer and Audit (Amendment Act 1985) and
section 35 of the Public Audit Act 2015.

The Directors monitor the effectiveness, objectivity and independence of the auditor. This responsibility includes
the approval of the audit engagement contract and the associated fees on behalf of the shareholders.

EMPLOYEES

The Directors are pleased once again to record their appreciation for the untiring effort of all employees of the
company.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

:) 9
7%/ D(
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on o \ A 2020.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

()\ 2020

A"

Maurice Omondi
Company Secretary
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STATEMENTS OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 81 of the Public Finance Management (PFM) Act, 2012 and section 14 of the State Corporations
Act, require the Directors to prepare financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs and the operating results of the entity for that year/period. The Directors are also required to ensure
that the entity keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial
position of the entity. The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the entity.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements, which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the entity for financial year ended June 30, 2019. This
responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that
these continue to be effective throughout the reporting period: (i) maintaining proper accounting records,
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the entity; (iii) designing,
implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material misstatements, whether due to error or
fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the entity; (v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and (vi) making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for the entity's financial statements, which have been prepared using
appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in
conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and in the manner required by the
Companies Act 2015, PFM Act, 2012 and the State Corporations Act section 14. The Directors are of the
opinion that the entity’s financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of entity’s transactions
during the financial year ended June 30, 2020, and of the entity’s financial position as at that date. The
Directors further confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained for the entity, which have
been relied upon in the preparation of the entity’s financial statements as well as the adequacy of the
systems of internal financial control.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have assessed the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern and disclosed, as applicable, matters relating to the use of going concern basis of
preparation of the financial statements. Subject to the comments and the conclusions made in Note 2 (a)
of these financial statements, the directors believe that the Company will remain a going concern for at
least twelve months from the date of this statement.

The Directors acknowledge that the independent audit of the financial statements does not relieve them of
their responsibility.

Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board on -% © Q 5// 2020 and signed on its
behalf by:

Hon. Charles Oyugi Owino Steﬁﬁen’Ligawa
Chairman, Board of Directors Managﬂlg Director (Ag)
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Enhancing Accountability

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON SOUTH NYANZA SUGAR COMPANY
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2020

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Qualified Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of South Nyanza Sugar
Company Limited set out on pages 26 to 71, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 30 June, 2020, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. | have obtained
all the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the South Nyanza Sugar Company Limited as at
30 June, 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and comply
with Kenya Companies Act, 2015.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Unsupported Provisions

As disclosed in Note 10 to the financial statements, the profit and loss and other
comprehensive income reflects administrative expenses of Kshs.581,244,000 which
includes provisions of Kshs.115,412,000 relating to tax penalties and legal cases.
The Management has not provided the measurement basis for the provisions as
required by the International Accounting Standards IAS 37 which requires that
appropriate recognition criteria and measurement bases are applied to provisions and
that sufficient information is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements to enable
users to understand their nature, timing and amount.

Consequently, the accuracy and completeness of the provisions of Kshs.115,412,000
could not be confirmed.

2. Understated Cash and Bank Balances

As disclosed in Note 20 to the financial statements, the statement of financial position
reflects cash and bank balances of Kshs.3,096,000. However, stale cheques
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amounting to Kshs.580,785 had not been reversed into the cashbook as at the time
of the audit. The management had not provided an explanation why the same had not
been written back to the cash book.

Consequently, the accuracy and the completeness of the cash and cash equivalent
balance of Kshs.3,096,000 could not be confirmed.

3. Receivables from Out Growers

As disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements, statement of financial position
reflects receivables from out growers balance of Kshs.107,099,000. The balance
arises from the Company’s provision of agricultural inputs and services to the out
growers, and the related accrued interest recoverable. The gross receivables balance
of Kshs.1,087,034,000 is an aggregation of out growers’ balances from the main
Agricultural Management Systems (AMS), out growers’ ledger and old balances
uploaded in a separate ledger in the AMS system.

Further, validation of the individual out growers’ balances revealed several
unsupported transactions in the out growers’ ledger, inconsistent transactions
between the underlying out growers files and ledger, and transactions in out growers
files not recorded in the ledger.

In addition, a provision for impairment of receivables from out growers of
Kshs.979,935,000 was provided at the end of the year, an indication that the
Management was unable to recover the debts from the farmers.

Consequently, the accuracy and recoverability of provision for impairment losses of
Kshs.979,935,000 could be not confirmed.

4. Deferred Income Tax

As disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements, statement of financial position
reflects Kshs.26,944,000 in respect of deferred income tax. However, the
Management did not provide an analysis on the computation and justification for
reporting it as tax liability based on IAS 12 which provides that differences between
the carrying amount and tax base of assets and liabilities, and carried forward tax
losses and credits, are recognized, with limited exceptions, as deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets, with the latter also being subject to a 'probable profits' test.

Consequently, the accuracy and completeness of deferred income tax balance of
Kshs.26,944,000 could not be confirmed.

5. Other Statutory Deductions

As disclosed in Note 26 to the financial statements, the statement of financial position
reflects trade and other payables balance of Kshs.4,889,932,000. Out of this balance,
Kshs.4,426,911,000 is in respect of other payables and accrued expenses which
includes other statutory deductions totaling Kshs.453,200,652 which had not been
remitted to the relevant bodies. Non-remittance of the statutory deductions may attract
heavy penalties and interests for non-compliance.
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The respective penalties and interest for non-compliance have not been provided in
these financial statements. Further in the absence of probable penalties and interest
provided for in these financial Statements,

Consequently, it has not been possible to confirm that the trade and other payables
balance of Kshs.4,889,932,000 is fairly stated.

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards of Supreme
Audit Institutions (ISSAIs). | am independent of the South Nyanza Sugar Company
Limited Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. | have fulfilled
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with
other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in
Kenya. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
Material Uncertainty in Relation to Going Concern

| draw attention to a disclosure in Note 4 to the financial statements, which indicates
that the Company incurred a net loss after tax of Kshs.1,656,308,000 (2019:
Kshs.1,358,342,000) during the vyear and had accumulated losses of
Kshs.6,322,810,000 as at 30 June, 2020 (2019: Kshs.4,666,502,000). In addition, the
Company’s current liabilities of Kshs.6,219,899,000 exceeded its current assets of
Kshs.848,411,000 resulting to negative working capital of Kshs.5,365,488,000 (2019:
Kshs.4,473,753,000). These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty, which may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

In addition, the Management has indicated that the Company’s going concern
depends on implementation of various strategies, whose success is yet to be realized.

Under the circumstances, the financial statements have therefore been prepared on
the going-concern basis on the assumption that the Company will continue to get
financial support from the Government, shareholders, banks and creditors.

My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters
to report in the year under review.

Other Matter

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness
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and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, | confirm that,
nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources
have not been applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Payment of Board and Director Costs

As disclosed in Note 10 to the financial statements, the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income reflects administration expenses Kshs.581,244,000
which includes Kshs.11,878,000 relating to board expenses. However, information
provided indicated that the board had eleven (11) board meetings instead of four (4)
recommended by Mwongozo code and Treasury Circular No. 2020(OP/CAB.9/1A).
The higher number of meetings above the approved number significantly contributed
to higher board expenses in a period the company is experiencing financial difficulties.

In addition, the Company paid an officer from Inspectorate of State Corporations
Kshs.560,000 as allowance for attending board meetings in a supervisory capacity as
part of her regular duties contrary to the Attorney General Circular AG/CONF/6/D/73
dated 22 August, 2013 that advised that sitting allowances or other remuneration is
only payable to duly appointed chairperson and members of board attending a board
meeting.

Consequently, the Management was in breach of the law.

2. Deposits with Suppliers

As disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements, the statement of financial position
reflects trade and other receivable balance of Kshs.74,421,000 other receivable and
prepayments of Kshs.238,518,000 before impairment losses of Kshs.169,536,000. As
indicated in prior years, included in this figure is deposits with suppliers’ balance of
Kshs.106,227,487 contrary to section 146 of Public Procurement and Asset Disposal
Act, 2015 which states that no works, goods or services shall be paid before they are
executed or delivered and accepted by the accounting officer of a procuring entity.

Consequently, the Management was in breach of the law.
3. Trade and Other Payables

As disclosed in Note 26 to the financial statements, the statement of financial position
reflects trade and other payables balance of Kshs.4,889,932,000 which includes
Kshs.4,426,911,000 in respect of other payables and accrued expenses. The balance
includes outstanding Value Added Tax (VAT) and PAYE payables totaling
Kshs.1,320,447,140 spanning several months of non-payment of principal amount,
interest and penalties.

As similarly reported in the previous year, the management has continued to indicate
that some of the outstanding obligations had been paid and that it intends to approach
the Kenya Revenue Authority for waiver of applicable interest and penalties.

Consequently, the Management was in breach of the law.
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4. Long Outstanding Borrowings

As disclosed in Note 27 of the financial statements, the statement of financial position
reflects borrowing balance of Kshs.2,081,817,000 which includes Kshs.818,969,000
in respect of Government of Kenya (GOK/ODA) loan and Kshs.477,321,000 being
Commodity Fund (SDF) loan which had fallen due by the end of 30 June, 2020.

Non-payment of loans is a breach of contract agreements which may attract heavy
penalties and interests for non-compliance.

Consequently, the Management was in breach of the law.

5. Officers Appointed in Acting Capacity

Audit verification of personnel records revealed that the Company had nine (9) who
had been appointed in acting capacity for a period beyond the stipulated six (6)
months, with some officers acting since 2015 in contravention of the Section C.14(1)
of Public Service Commission Human Resource Policies and Procedures Manual,
which prohibits an officer from acting to a position for more than six (6) months. No
explanation was provided for the failure to confirm the officers to the posts or advertise
the vacancies.

Lack of substantive leadership in the respective departments and units may have
constrained their contribution in fulfilling the Company’s objectives. The Management
was also in breach of the law

6. Ethnicity and Regional Distribution

Audit of the staff records revealed that 86% of the staff are from the dominant ethnic
community contrary to requirement Section 7(1) and (2) of the National Cohesion and
Integration Act, 2008 which states that all public establishments shall seek to
represent the diversity of the people of Kenya in the employment of staff and no public
establishment shall have more than one third of its staff from the same ethnic
community.

Consequently, the Management was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that
I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities
that govern them. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matter described under Effectiveness of Internal
Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my report, | confirm that,
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nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that internal controls,
risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

Lack of Business Continuity Plan

A review of the Company’s business continuity plan and disaster recovery plan
revealed that they have not been approved by the Board and consequently these
documents have not been operationalized contrary to section 92(1) and (3) of the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 which state that if a State organ or other
public entity encounters a serious financial problem or anticipates serious challenges
in performing its financial function or meeting its financial commitments, it shall
immediately seek solutions to resolve the financial problems.

The Company is therefore, highly exposed to business risks and unmitigated losses
in the event of occurrence of a disaster.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The
standards require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
As required by the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015 | report based on the audit, that:

(i) | have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of my audit;

(i) In my opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company, so far
as appears from the examination of those records;

(i) The Company’s statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income are in agreement with the accounting records; and

(iv) In my opinion the information provided in the report of the Directors is consistent
with the financial statements.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

The Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and the requirements of the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015 and for maintaining
effective internal control as the Management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error and for assessment of the effectiveness of internal control, risk
management and governance.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing
the Company'’s ability of to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
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unless Management is aware of the intention to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations.

The Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to
the Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015.

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, the Management is also responsible for ensuring that
the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial
statements are in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public
resources are applied in an effective way.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process,
reviewing the effectiveness of how the entity monitors compliance with relevant
legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General’s Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion in accordance with the
provisions of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in
compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISSAIs will always detect a material misstatement and weakness when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
are in compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are
applied in an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the
Constitution and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the
Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, | consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the
effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and
systems in accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act,
2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.
My consideration of the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control that might be material weaknesses under the ISSAIls. A material
weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation
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to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation
of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAIs, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in the auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of my audit report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Company to express an opinion on the financial
statements.

e Perform such other procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances.
| communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that are identified during the audit.

| also provide the Management with a statement that | have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
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relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

.

CPA é n a , CBS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

16 February, 2022
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South Nyanza Sugar Company Limited
Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes 2020 2019

Shs’000 Shs’000

Gross sales 410,608 3,097,313
Indirect taxes:

- Value Added Tax (VAT) (56,635) (423,235)
Revenue 6 353,973 2,674,078
Loss/gains arising from changes in fair value less costs

to sell of biological assets 16 - (24,940)
353,973 2,649,138

Cost of sales 7 (1,307,358) (2,901,186)
Gross loss (953,385) (252,048)
Other income 8 54,671 63,508
Distribution costs 9 (20,693) (31,598)
Administrative expenses 10 (581,244) (973,661)
Operating loss (1,500,651) (1,193,799)
Finance costs 11 (155,657) (151,765)
Loss before income tax (1,656,308) (1,345,564)
Income tax expense 13 # (12,778)
Loss for the year (1,656,308) (1,358,342)
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South Nyanza Sugar Company Limited
Financial Statements
At 30 June 2020

Statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Notes Shs’000 Shs’000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 4,628,247 4,847,930
Intangible assets 15 3,445 3,709
4,631,692 4,851,639
Current assets
Biological assets 16 286,680 341,606
Inventories 17 383,115 406,216
Trade and other receivables 18 74,421 87,564
Receivables from out growers 19 107,099 299,555
Cash and bank balances 20 3,096 6,228
854,411 1,141,169
TOTAL ASSETS 5,486,103 5,992,808
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to owners
Share capital 21 353,970 353,970
Revaluation reserve 22 3,413,405 3,413,405
Other reserve 23 48,131 48,131
Accumulated losses (6,322,810) (4,666,502)
Total equity (2,507,304) (850,996)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Grants 24 581,293 469,973
Borrowings 27 758,978 345,532
Deferred income tax 25 26,944 26,944
Retirement benefits obligation 29 406,293 386,433
1,773,508 1,228,882
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 26 4,889,932 4,007,753
Borrowings 27 1,322,839 1,291,320
Bank overdraft 27 - 308,721
Current income tax 13 7,128 7,128
6,219,899 5,614,922
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,486,103 5,992,808
The financial statemen}F on pages 26 to 71 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
A 2020 and signed on its behalf by:
| J T
| V' o i
A s
Hon. Charles Oyugi Owino Stepyh Ligawa
Chairman Managing Director (Ag)
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South Nyanza Sugar Company Limited

Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2020

Statement of changes in equity as at 30 June 2020

Year ended 30 June 2019

At the start of year
Revaluation during the year

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss

At end of year

Year ended 30 June 2020

At start of year

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss

At end of year

Notes

Share Revaluation Other Accumulated

capital reserves reserve losses Total equity
Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000
353,970 3,413,405 48,131 (3,308,160) 507,346
- - - (1,345,564) (1,345,564)

- - - (12,778) (12,778)

- - - (1,358,342) (1,358,342)
353,970 3,413,405 48,131 (4,666,502) (850,996)
353,970 3,413,405 48,131 (4,666,502) (850,996)
- - - (1,656,308) (1,656,308)

- - - (1,656,308) (1,656,308)
353,970 3,413,405 48,131 (6,322,810) (2,507,304)
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South Nyanza Sugar Company Limited
Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes 2020 2019
Shs’000 Shs’000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 28 58,785 204,001
Interest received 8 19,471 38,259
Interest paid and other finance charges 11 (155,657) (151,765)
Net qgsh generated from/ (used in) operating (77.401) 90,495
activities.
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 14 - (126,172)
Purchase of intangible assets 15 33,557 -
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets - 13,017
Net cash used in investing activities 33,557 (113,155)
Cash flows from financing activities
Borrowings 366,171 466,974
Repayment of borrowings 27 (16,738) (476,458)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities 349,433 (9,484)
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents 305,589 (32,144)
At start of year (302,493) (270,349)
At end of year 20 3,096 (302,493)
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South Nyanza Sugar Company Limited
Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes

1

General information

South Nyanza Sugar Company Limited is incorporated in Kenya under the Companies Act as a public
limited liability Company, and is domiciled in Kenya. The address of its registered office is:

PO Box 107 - 40405
Sare-Awendo

For Kenyan Companies Act reporting purposes, the balance sheet is represented by the statement of
financial position and the profit and loss account by the statement of comprehensive income, in these
financial statements.

Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements are prepared in compliance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of land and buildings. The financial statements are
presented in Kenyan Shillings (Shs), rounded to the nearest thousand.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 3.

Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
and IFRICs

() Relevant new standards and amendments to published standards effective
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Amendments The amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes clarify the following aspects:

to IAS 12

Recognition of © Unrealised losses on debt instruments measured at fair value and
measured at cost for tax purposes give rise to a deductible temporary
difference regardless of whether the debt instrument's holder expects
to recover the carrying amount of the debt instrument by sale or by use.

e The carrying amount of an asset does not limit the estimation of

Losses probable future taxable profits.

e Estimates for future taxable profits exclude tax deductions resulting
from the reversal of deductible temporary differences.

e An entity assesses a deferred tax asset in combination with other
deferred tax assets. Where tax law restricts the utilisation of tax losses,
an entity would assess a deferred tax asset in combination with other
deferred tax assets of the same type.

Deferred Tax
Assets for
Unrealised

The application of these amendments has had no impact on the
Company's financial statements as the Company already assesses the
sufficiency of the future taxable profits in a way that is consistent with these
amendments.
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South Nyanza Sugar Company Limited '
Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes (continued)
2 Accounting policies (continued)

(b) Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and
IFRICs (Continued)

(i) Relevant new standards and amendments to published standards effective for
the year ended 30 June 2020 (Continued)

Annual The annual improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 cycle include a number of
Improvements amendments to various IFRSs, which are summarised below:

to 2010-2012
The amendments to IFRS 5 add specific guidance in IFRS 5 for cases in which

an entity reclassifies an asset from held for sale to held for distribution or vice
versa and cases in which held-for-distribution accounting is discontinued.

The amendments to IFRS 7 add additional guidance to clarify whether a
servicing contract is continuing involvement in a transferred asset for the
purpose of determining the disclosures required. It clarifies the applicability of
the amendments to IFRS 7 on offsetting disclosures to condensed interim
financial statements.

The amendments to IAS 19 clarify that the high quality corporate bonds used
in estimating the discount rate for post-employment benefits should be
denominated in the same currency as the benefits to be paid (thus, the depth
of the market for high quality corporate bonds should be assessed at currency
level).

The amendment to IAS 34 clarifies the meaning of 'elsewhere in the interim
report' and requires a cross-reference.

The application of these amendments has had no material impact on the
disclosures or on the amounts recognised in the company financial
statements.

Amendments The amendments to IAS 7 Presentation of Financial Statements address
to IAS 7 perceived impediments to preparers exercising their judgement in presenting
Disclosure their financial reports by making the following changes:

Initiative

e clarification that information should not be obscured by aggregating or by
providing immaterial information, materiality considerations apply to all
parts of the financial statements, and even when a standard requires a
specific disclosure, materiality considerations do-apply;

e clarification that the list of line items to be presented in these statements
can be disaggregated and aggregated as relevant and additional guidance
on subtotals in these statements;

e clarification that an entity's share of Other Comprehensive Income of equity-
accounted associates and joint ventures should be presented in aggregate
as single line items based on whether or not it will subsequently be
reclassified to profit or loss; and

e additional examples of possible ways of ordering the notes to clarify that
understandability and comparability should be considered when
determining the order of the notes and to demonstrate that the notes need
not be presented in the order so far listed in paragraph 114 of IAS 1.

The amendments to the standard has had no impact on the financial
statements.
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South Nyanza Sugar Company Limited
Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes (continued)

2

Accounting policies (continued)

(b) Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and
IFRICs (Continued)

(ii) New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2020

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for
annual periods beginning after 1 July 2020, and have not been applied in preparing these financial
statements. None of these is expected to have a significant effect on the financial statements of

the Company, except the following set out below.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”)

IFRS 9, issued in November 2009, introduced new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 was amended in October 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for de-recognition and in
November 2013 to include the new requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised

version of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014 mainly to include:

a) impairment requirements for financial assets; and

b) limited amendments to the classification and measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair
value through other comprehensive income’' (FVTOCI) measurement category for certain simple

debt instruments.

Key requirements of IFRS 9:

¢ all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms that give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In
addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies) in other

comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

e with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or
loss, IFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value of a financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of such changes in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability's credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair value through

profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.
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Notes (continued)
2 Accounting policies (continued)

(b) Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and
IFRICs (Continued)

(ii) New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2020
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”) (Continued)

o inrelation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit
losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognized.

o the new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types of hedge accounting
mechanisms currently available in IAS 39. Under IFRS 9, greater flexibility has been
introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening
the types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test
has been overhauled and replaced with the principle of an ‘economic relationship’.
Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity's risk management activities have also been
introduced.

Based on an analysis of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities as at 30 June 2018

on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at that date, the Directors have performed

a preliminary assessment of the impact of IFRS 9 to the Company’s financial statements as

follows:

Classification and measurement

All the financial assets and financial liabilities will continue to be measured on the same bases
as is currently adopted under [AS 39.

Impairment

Financial assets measured at amortised cost, listed redeemable notes that will be carried at
FVTOCI under IFRS 9, finance lease receivables, amounts due from customer under contracts,
and financial guarantee contracts will be subject to the impairment provisions of IFRS 9.

The Company expects to apply the simplified approach to recognise lifetime expected credit
losses for its trade receivables, as required or permitted by IFRS 15. The Company does not
hold any listed redeemable notes, finance lease receivables, amounts due from customer
under construction contracts or financial guarantee contracts.

In general, the Directors anticipate that the application of the expected credit loss model of
IFRS 9 will result in earlier recognition of credit losses for the trade and other receivables
balances and are currently assessing the potential impact.

Hedge accounting

As the new hedge accounting requirements will align more closely with the Company’s risk
management policies, with generally more qualifying hedging instruments and hedged items,
an assessment of the Company’s current hedging relationships indicates that they will qualify
as continuing hedging relationships upon the application of IFRS 9.

The Directors are assessing the potential impact on the financial statements resulting from the
application of these changes. The new standard is expected to be applied for the year
beginning 1 July 2020.
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South Nyanza Sugar Company Limited
Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes (continued)
2 Accounting policies (continued)

(b) Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and
IFRICs (Continued)

(i) New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2020
(Continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations
when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when ‘control' of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 15.

In April 2016, the IASB issued Clarifications to IFRS 15 in relation to identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations as well as licensing application guidance.

The Company recognises revenue mainly from sale of sugar. Based on preliminary assessment,
the Directors do not anticipate that the application of IFRS 15 will have a significant impact on the
financial position and/or financial performance. The new standard is expected to be applied for the
year beginning 1 July 2020.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. IFRS 16 will supersede the current guidance including IAS
17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes leases and service contracts on the basis of whether an identified asset is
controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases (off balance sheet) and finance leases
(on balance sheet) are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right of
use asset and a corresponding liability be recognised for all lessees (i.e. on balance sheet) except
for short term leases and leases of low value assets.
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2

Accounting policies (continued)

(b) Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and
IFRICs (Continued)

(ii) New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2020

(Continued)
IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right of use is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any re-
measurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. Furthermore,
the classification of cash flows will also be affected as operating lease payments under IAS 17 are
presented as operating cash flows, whereas under IFRS 16, the lease payments will be split into
principal and interest portions which will be presented as financing and operating cash flows

respectively.

In contrast to lessee accounting, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward lessor accounting treatment
in IAS 17 and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease as either an operating lease or a

finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.

The Company is assessing the potential impact on the financial statements resulting from the

application of these changes

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 requires an entity to recognise profits as it delivers insurance services, rather than when
it receives premiums, as well as to provide information about insurance contract profits that the
Company expects to recognise in the future. IFRS 17 requires an entity to distinguish between
groups of contracts expected to be profit making and groups of contracts expected to be loss
making. Any expected losses arising from loss-making, or onerous, contracts are accounted for in
profit or loss as soon as the Company determines that losses are expected. IFRS 17 requires the
entity to update the fulfilment cash flows at each reporting date, using current estimates of the

amount, timing and uncertainty of cash flows and of discount rates.
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2

Accounting policies (continued)

(b) Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and
IFRICs (Continued)

(ii) New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2020

(Continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (Continued)

The entity:

(@) accounts for changes to estimates of future cash flows from one reporting date to another either
as an amount in profit or loss or as an adjustment to the expected profit for providing insurance

coverage, depending on the type of change and the reason for it; and

(b) chooses where to present the effects of some changes in discount rates - either in profit or loss

or in other comprehensive income.

IFRS 17 also requires disclosures to enable users of financial statements to understand the
amounts recognised in the entity’s statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, and to assess the risks the Company faces from issuing

insurance contracts.

IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. IFRS 17 is effective for financial periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2021. An entity shall apply the standard retrospectively unless
impracticable. A company can choose to apply IFRS 17 before that date, but only if it also applies

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The adoption of this standard will not have an impact on the consolidated and company financial

statements since the Company does not issue insurance contracts.

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment

Transactions

The amendments clarify the following:

() In estimating the fair value of a cash settled share based payment, the accounting for the
effects of vesting and non vesting conditions should follow the same approach as for equity

settled share-based payments.

(i) Where tax law or regulation require an entity to withhold a specified number of equity
instruments equal to the monetary value of the employee's tax obligation to meet the
employee’s tax liability which is then remitted to the tax authority, i.e. the share-based payment

would have been classified as equity-settled had it not included the net settlement feature.

(i) A modification of share based payment that changes the transaction from cash-settled to

equity-settled should be accounted for as follows:

e The original liability is derecognised;

e The equity-settled share-based payment is recognised at the modification date fair value
of the equity instrument granted to the extent that services have been rendered up to

modification date; and

e Any difference between the carrying amount of the liability at the modification date and the

amount recognised in equity should be recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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(b) Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and
IFRICs (Continued)

(ii)New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2020
(Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
(Continued)

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of the amendments in future will have a significant
impact on the financial statements as the Company does not have any cash-settled share-based
payment arrangements or any withholding tax arrangements with tax authorities in relation to share-
based payments.

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

IFRIC 22 addresses how to determine the ‘date of transaction’ for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of an asset, expense or income, when consideration for that
item has been paid or received in advance in a foreign currency which resulted in the recognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability. (e.g. a non-refundable deposit or deferred revenue).

The interpretation specifies that the date of transactions is the date on which the entity initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt of
advance consideration.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of the amendments in the future will have an impact
on the financial statements as the Company already accounts for transactions involving the payment
or receipt of advance consideration in a foreign currency in a way that is consistent with the
amendments.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation addresses the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12.
It specifically considers:

e Whether tax treatments should be considered collectively

e Assumptions for taxation authorities' examinations

o The determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
tax rates

¢ The effect of changes in facts and circumstances

The Company is assessing the potential impact on the financial statements resulting from the
application of these changes.
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(c) Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and
IFRICs

(ii) New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2020
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 cycle makes amendments to the
following standards:

e |IFRS 3 and IFRS 11 - The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that when an entity obtains control
of a business that is a joint operation, it remeasures previously held interests in that business.
The amendments to IFRS 11 clarify that when an entity obtains joint control of a business that
is a joint operation, the entity does not remeasure previously held interests in that business.

e |IAS 12 - The amendments clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends (i.e.
distribution of profits) should be recognised in profit or loss, regardiess of how the tax arises.

e |AS 23 - The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds
that an entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of the amendments in the future will have an
impact on the financial statements.

(iii) Early adoption of standards)

The Company did not early adopt new or amended standards in the period ended 30 June
2020.

(b) Functional currency and translation of foreign currencies

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Company’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the
functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in ‘Kenyan Shillings (Shs),
which is the Company’s functional currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents
are presented in the income statement within ‘finance income or cost’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the income statement within ‘other income’ or
‘other expenses’.
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(c) Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods
and services in the ordinary course of the Company'’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value-
added tax (VAT, returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales within the Company.

The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Company’s activities as described below. The Company bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue is recognized as follows:

Sales of goods are recognized in the period in which the Company has delivered products to the
customer, the customer has full discretion over the channel and price to sell the products, and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery
does not occur until the products have been accepted by the customer.

No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term of 30 days,
which is consistent with the market practice. The Company does not operate any loyalty
programmes.

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are shown at fair value, based on periodic valuations by external
independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is
restated to the revalued amount of the asset. All other property, plant and equipment are stated
at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of land and buildings are credited to other
comprehensive income and shown as other reserves in shareholders’ equity. Decreases that
offset previous increases of the same asset are charged in other comprehensive income and
debited against other reserves directly in equity; all other decreases are charged to the income
statement. Each year the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount
of the asset (the depreciation charged to profit and loss) and depreciation based on the asset’s
original cost is transferred from ‘other reserves’ to retained earnings.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost or re-valued
amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 25 - 40 years
Plant and machinery 10 - 60 years
Equipment and motor vehicles 3 - 8 years
Bearer plants 6 years
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_(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2 (e)).Gains and losses
on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
included in the income statement. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in other
reserves relating to that asset are transferred to retained earnings.

(e) Biological assets
Biological assets comprise of agricultural produce on sugar cane.

The roots of the sugar cane are bearer plants and are therefore presented and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment, see note 2(d). However, the produce growing on the cane is
accounted for as biological assets until the point of harvest. Harvested cane is transferred to
inventory at fair value less costs to sell when harvested. The company has applied the
amendments made to the accounting standards in relation to the accounting for bearer plants
from 1 July 2016, refer to Note 16 for further information.

Any gains or losses arising on initial recognition of biological assets and from subsequent
changes in fair value less costs to sell are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
in the year in which they arise.

The fair value of the bearer produce is based on the fair value less costs to sale.

Subsequently all costs of upkeep and maintenance of mature biological assets are recognised
in the income statement within ‘cost of sales’ in the period in which they are incurred.

(f) Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset'’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are valued at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

(g) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined by the
first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct Labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity), but excludes borrowing costs. Net realizable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion and applicable variable
selling expenses.
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(h) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed
in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are a classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less provision for impairment. As consistently applied,
provision is made for receivables in excess of 120 days.

(i) Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method.

1)) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as ‘share capital’ in equity. Any premium received over and above
the par value of the shares is classified as ‘share premium’ in equity.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents

Ordinary shares are classified as ‘share capital’ in equity. Any premium received over and above
the par value of the shares is classified as ‘share premium’ in equity.

() Employee benefits

(i) Retirement benefit obligations

The Company operates defined contribution retirement benefit scheme for its non-unionized
employees while unionized employees qualify for gratuity upon retirement. The Company and all
its employees also contribute to the appropriate National Social Security Fund, which are defined
contribution schemes. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Company pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Company has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognized as
an employee benefit expense when they are due.

The liability recognized in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit gratuity
obligation is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected
unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation.
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Accounting policies (Continued)

U]

Employee benefits (Continued)

@

(ii)

(m)

Retirement benefit obligations (Continued)

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period
in which they arise. Past-service costs are recognized immediately in income.

The company does not currently have a separate assets to finance the gratuity obligation

Other entitlements

The estimated monetary liability for employees’ accrued annual leave entitlement at the
reporting date is recognized as an expense accrual.

The Company recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders. The Company
recognizes a provision where contractually obliged or where there is past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred income tax. Tax is recognized
in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Current and deferred income tax for the year ended 30.06.2020 has been calculated at arm’s
length and incorporated in the financial statements.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to
the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying values in the financial
statements. However, if the deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill; deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit nor loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Company and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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(n) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortized cost using the effective interest method; any differences between
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

(o) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when: the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions are not recognized for future
operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time
is recognized as interest expense.

(p) Grants

Grants are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Where a grant is related to an asset, the grant is presented in the statement of financial position
and is credited in the statement of comprehensive income over the periods and in the proportions
in which depreciation expense on those assets they are used to finance is recognized.

(q) Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.
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Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including experience of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(i) Biological assets

In determining the fair value of biological assets, management uses estimates based on
historical data relating to yields and prices of sugar. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce
potential differences between estimates and actual experience. The significant assumptions
used are set out in note 15.

(ii) Recoverability of receivable from Outgrowers

Outgrower balances relate to the amounts due from farmers that arise from the Company’s
provision of agricultural inputs and services and the related accrued interest. Significant
judgment has been applied by management in estimating the amounts that may not be
recoverable based on investment expenditure in inputs and services to Outgrowers over the
years taking into account the expected recovery cycle for the amounts.

Provision is determined based on the sugar development recovery cycle such that any
balances beyond that cycle are fully provided. Sugar development recovery cycle is
approximately 24 months.

The policy of the company is that impairment provision is determined for amounts in excess
of the previous 24 months actual spent on sugar development, this has been applied
consistently in preparation of the financial statements.

(iii) Income taxes

Significant judgment is required in determining the Company’s provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business.

The Company recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

(b) Critical judgments in applying the entity’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made judgments
in determining:

e The classification of financial assets and leases
o  Whether financial and non-financial assets are impaired.
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4 Going Concern

The Company made a loss after tax of Shs 1,656,308,000 (2019: Shs 1,358,342,000) during the year
which was added to accumulated losses totaling Shs 6,322,810,000 (2019: Shs 4,666,502,000). In
addition, the Company was in a net current liability position of Shs 5,365,488,000 (2019:
Shs 4,473,753,000). The amounts that had become due for repayment on the Commodities fund (SDF)
Loan as at year-end were not settled. Management has put in place the following to address the
situation:

e The company started factory repairs on 25" May 2020 and is projected to end mid-August 2020.
After repairs, efficiency is projected to be at 85% from below 30%. The future of the company
depends on the ongoing factory rehabilitation and the staff that have shown dedication. A
comprehensive strategic plan is also in place aimed at achieving targeted goals in the following
year.

Based on the above, the directors believe that the company will continue in operational existence for at
least 12 months from the date of these financial statements. The directors believe that it is appropriate
to prepare the Company’s financial statements on a going concern basis, which assumes that the
Company will continue to meet its obligations as they fall due for the foreseeable future.

5 Financial risk management

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

Financial risk management is carried out by the finance department under policies approved by the
Board of Directors.
Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to the US dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and
recognized assets and liabilities.

At 30 June 2020, if the Kenyan Shilling had weakened/strengthened by 10% against the US dollar
with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been Shs 21,402 (2019:
Shs 107,601) higher/lower.

(ii) Price risk

The Company does not hold any financial instruments subject to price risk.

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Company’s interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at
variable rates. To manage interest rate risk the Company ensures that a portion of its borrowings
are fixed rate borrowings. The Company regularly monitors financing options available to ensure
optimum interest rates are obtained.

At 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019, the Company did not have any borrowings at variable rates.
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5 Financial risk management (continued)

(iv) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a Company basis. Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and trade
and other receivables. Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company.

Credit risk is managed by the Head of Finance, except for credit risk relating to accounts receivable
balances. Sales Committee is responsible for managing and analyzing credit risk for each new
client before standard payment and delivery terms are offered. Credit risk arises from cash at bank
and short term deposits with banks, as well as trade and other receivables. The Company has no
significant concentrations of credit risk.

For banks and financial institutions, only reputable well established financial institutions, are
accepted. For trade receivables, the Company'’s finance department assesses the credit quality of
each customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on limits set by the Board. The utilization of credit limits is
regularly monitored.

The amount that best represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk at 30 June 2020
is made up as follows:

2020 2019

Shs'000 Shs’'000

Cash at bank (Note 20) 3,096 6,228
Trade receivables (Note 18) 9,626 6,956
Receivable from out-growers (Note 19) 107,099 299,555
Other receivables 64,795 80,608
184,616 393,347

No collateral is held in respect of the above assets. All receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired are within their approved credit limits, and no receivables have had their terms
renegotiated, and management does not expect any losses from non-performance by these
parties.

None of the above assets are either past due or impaired except for the following amounts in trade
and outgrower receivables (which are due within 30 days of the end of the month in which they are
invoiced).

The trade receivables which were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables

is as follows:
2020 2019
Shs'000 Shs'000
Past due but not impaired:
- by up to 30 days 3,359 6,050
- by 31 to 60 days 50 778
Total past due but not impaired 3,409 6,828
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5 Financial risk management (continued)

(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

2020 2019
Shs'000 Shs'000

Total receivables:
Carrying amount before provision for impairment loss 1,399,974 1,490,161
Provision for impairment loss (1,218,453) (1,103,042)
Net carrying amount 181,521 387,119

The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to wholesalers, which are in unexpectedly difficult
economic situations and doubtful outgrower balances. It was assessed that all trade receivables
past due by more than 60 days are considered to be impaired, and are carried at their estimated
recoverable value.

(v} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, and the availability of funding from an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due
to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, management and the Board maintains flexibility
in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

Management performs cash flow forecasting and monitor rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet its operational needs.

The Company's approach when managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Company's reputation.

Surplus cash held by the Company, over and above the amounts required for working capital
management are invested in interest bearing fixed deposit accounts.

The table below analyses the Company'’s financial liabilities that will be settled on a net basis into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position date
to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table below are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows:

Less than 1 year Over 1 year Total
At 30 June 2020: Shs'000
Liabilities
- borrowings 1,322,839 758,978 2,081,817
- tfrade and other payables 4,897,060 - 4,897,060
Total financial liabilities (contractual maturity
dates) 6,219,899 758,978 6,978,877
At 30 June 2019:
Liabilities
- borrowings 1,600,041 345,532 1,945,573
- trade and other payables 4,014,881 - 4,014,881
Total financial liabilities (contractual maturity
dates) 5,614,922 345,532 5,960,454
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5 Financial risk management (continued)

(vi) Capital management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new capital or sell assets
to reduce debt.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital is calculated as equity plus net debt.

2020 2019

Shs'000 Shs'000

Total borrowings 2,081,817 1,945,573
Less: cash and cash equivalents (3,096) (6,228)
Net debt 2,078,721 1,939,345
Total equity (2,507,304) (850,996)
Total capital (428,583) 1,088,349
Gearing ratio -485% 178%
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6 Revenue 2020 2019
Shs'000 Shs'000

Analysis of revenue by category:
Sugar Sales 316,942 2,559,576
Molasses Sales 37,031 114,502
353,973 2,674,078

7 Cost of Sales

Cost of cane 412,057 1,560,693
Agriculture: Overheads 345,781 534,896
Agriculture: Depreciation 105,508 112,480
Manufacturing; Costs 361,134 620,922
Manufacturing: Depreciation 82,878 72,195

1,307,358 2,901,186

8 Other income

Interest on receivables from Outgrowers 19,471 38,259
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 33,557 13,017
Miscellaneous income 1,643 12,232

54,671 63,508

9 Distribution expenses

Marketing and advertising - 394
Production distribution 20,693 31,204
20,693 31,598
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10 Administrative expenses 2020 2019
Shs'000 Shs'000

Staff costs(Administrative departments) 369,249 501,549
Provisions 115,412 (2,011)
Rates, Levies and insurance 28,593 149,272
Depreciation(Administrative) 31,561 93,444

Travel and accommodation 5,952 41,325
Ground maintenance & waste management 18,728 53,138
Mobile Equipment usage expenses 1,321 7,624

Board & Directors costs 11,878 28,187
Spares & Consumables 12,650 28,737

Audit & Consultancies 1,849 11,401

Staff Acquisition & Development costs 422 4,712
Utilities 320 8,849

Other administrative costs (Net of recoveries) (16,691) 47,434
581,244 973,661

11 Finance costs

Interest expense-CF(SDF) and GoK loans 96,566 59,085
Interest expense-bank charges 59,091 92,680
155,657 151,765

12 Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages 939,803 1,224,502
Retirement benefits costs:

- Defined contribution scheme 58,141 75,348
- National Social Security Funds 1,987 2,229

999,932 1,302,079

13 Income tax credit
Deferred income tax (Note 25) 231,288 435,145
Deferred tax asset not recognised (231,288) (435,145)

Income tax credit = -
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13 Income tax expense (continued)

The tax on the Company's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the statutory income tax rate as follows:

2020 2019

Shs'000 Shs'000

Loss before income tax (1,656,308) (1,345,564)
Tax calculated at the statutory income tax rate of 25%

(2019 - 30%) (414,077) (403,669)

Tax effect of:

Items not deductible for tax purposes (6,013) (6,539)

Under provision of deferred income tax in prior year 43,915 343,043

Deferred income tax asset not recognised 376,175 67,165

Income tax expense - -

Deferred income tax asset derecognition is made on the basis that it's not reasonably expected that the
company would make profit in the foreseeable future to clear the accumulated losses.

Movement on deferred income tax on other income is as follows:

2020 2019

Shs'000 Shs'000

Opening income tax on other come (7,128) 5,650
Income tax liability/asset (movement) - (12,778)
Income tax liability/asset (7,128) (7,128)
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14 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
The Company’s property, plant and equipment were revalued on 30 June 2018, by Milligan Valuates
Limited. Valuations were made on the basis of estimated open market value. The revaluation surplus
net of applicable deferred taxes was credited to other comprehensive income and is shown in other
reserves in shareholder’s equity.

If the property, plant and equipment were stated on the historical cost basis, the amounts would be as

follows:
2020 2019
Shs’000 Shs’000
Cost 4,473,441 4,478,302
Accumulated depreciation (3,707,469) (3,707,469)
Net book amount 765,972 770,833

Bank borrowings are secured on properties to the value of Shs 2,895,808,000 (2019:
Shs 2,895,808,000).

15 Intangible assets

Software WIP Totals
Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
Year ended 30 June 2019
Opening net book value 52,246 2,795 55,041
Additions 132 - 132
Amortisation charge (51,464) - (51,464)
ltems expenses from WIP - - (2,400)
Closing net book amount 914 2,795 3,709
At 30 June 2019
Cost 257,317 5,195 262,512
Accumulated amortization (256,403) (2,400) (258,803)
Net book amount 914 2,795 3,709
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15 Intangible assets (Continued)
Software WIP Totals
Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
Year ended 30 June 2020
Opening net book value 914 2,795 3,709
Additions - - -
Amortisation charge (264) - (264)
Closing net book amount 650 2,795 3,445
At 30 June 2020
Cost 257,317 2,795 260,112
Accumulated amortisation (256,667) - (256,667)
Net book amount 650 2,795 3,445
16 Biological assets
Year ended 30 June 2019 Dairy
Cane animals Total
Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000
- At start of the year 461,262 1,570 462,832
- Additions due to development of cane 149,154 - 149,154
- Decrease due to harvest (88,030) - (88,030)
- Loss arising from changes in fair value less cost
to sell of bioclogical assets (157,409) (88) (157,409)
At end of year 340,124 1,482 341,606
Year ended 30 June 2020
At start of year 340,124 1,482 341 ,606
Additions due to development of cane 43,557 - 43,557
Transfer to bearer plant = =
Decrease due to harvest (98,484) - (98,484)
Losses arising from changes in fair value less costs to
sell of biological assets - - -
At end of year 285,197 1,482 286,680
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16 Biological assets (continued)
The key assumptions made concerning the future are as follows:

-The valuation is based on a market price of Kes 97,000 per ton of sugar (2019 Kes 92,854)
-Estimated average cane yield 90tch per plant crop and 80tch for ratoon.

-Estimated average tonnage for cane above six months 145,296 tones (2019 114,712 tones)
-Cane at the age of six months and below has no reliably determinable market value and has been
stated at cost

-Mature cane has been stated at fair value less cost to sell.

The Company had 27 herds of dairy cattle at 30 June 2020 (2019: 30 herds). Nine died during the
year.

17 Inventories

2020 2019
Shs'000 Shs'000
Factory and agriculture spares 249,732 265,230
General consumables 70,900 72,592
320,632 337,822
Finished goods (sugar & molasses) 885 11,896
Sugar in process 51,467 42,155
Raw material cane on yard - 4,212
Goods in transit 10,131 10,131
383,115 406,216
18  Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
78,608 74,922
Less: provision for impairment losses (68,982) (67,966)
Net trade receivables 9,626 6,956
Other receivables and prepayments 234,332 250,144
Less: provision for impairment losses (169,536) (169,536)
Net other receivables and prepayments 64,795 80,608
74,421 87,564
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18  Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade and other receivables are as follows:

2020 2019

Shs'000 Shs'000

At start of year 237,503 215,504
Charge to profit or loss 1,015 21,999
At end of year 238,518 237,503

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of
receivable above. The Company does not hold any collateral security against the receivables.
The fair value of trade and other receivables approximates their carrying value.

19 Receivables from outgrowers 2020 2019
Shs'000 Shs'000

Billable inputs and services 834,193 923,471
Unbilled services 67,778 67,778
Accrued interest on land development 185,063 173,846

Gross receivables from Outgrowers 1,087,034 1,165,095

Less: provision for impairment losses (979,935) (865,540)
107,099 299,555

Movements on the provision for impairment of Outgrower receivables are as follows:

2020 2019

Shs'000 Shs'000

At start of year 865,540 889,550
Charge to profit or loss/(write back) 114,396 (24,010)
At end of year 979,936 865,540

The Company recovers the investment in Outgrowers against payments to Outgrowers upon
harvesting of the sugarcane.
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20

21

Cash and bank balances

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include the following:

Cash and bank balances
Bank overdrafts (Note 27)

Cash and bank balances details:

Petty cash account -Kisumu

Petty cash account -Nairobi

Cash in transit

Lipa na Mpesa Paybill

Barclays Bank of Kenya-Kisii — Acct 0081222509
Co-operative Bank-Migori- Acct 01136204628700

Kenya Commercial Bank-Migori- Acct 1106321308
National Bank of Kenya Awendo- Acct 01001045348700
Co-operative Bank Capex-Migori-Acct 01136204628701
Co-op Bank —VAT/SDL —Rongo- Acct 01136204628702
Co-operative Bank-Farmers-Rongo- Acct 01136204628703
NBK project account-Acct 01001045348702

Share capital

Balance at 1 July 2019 and 30 June 2020

2020 2019
Shs'000 Shs'000
3,096 6,228

- (308,721)

3,096 (302,493)

0 0

0 0

63 491
2,387 1,222
30 (308,721)

3 )

65 4,353

- 4

529 1

13 1

6 159

3,096 (302,493)
Number of Ordinary
shares shares
Shs'000

17,698,500 353,970

The total authorized number of ordinary shares is 18,000,000 with a par value of Shs 20 per share.

The issued and fully paid shares are 17,698,484 with a par value of Shs 20 per share.

Shareholding composition:

Government of Kenya

Industrial and Commercial Development Corporation
Industrial Development Bank

Mehta Group International
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22 Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve represents solely the surplus on the revaluation of property equipment net
of deferred income tax and is non-distributable.

Year ended 30 June 2019 Shs'000

At start of year 3,413,405
Assets revaluation -

At end of year 3,413,405

Year ended 30 June 2020

At start of year 3,413,405
Asset revaluation "

At end of year 3,413,405

23 Other reserves

2020 2019

Shs'000 Shs'000

At start of the year 48,131 48,131
At end of the year 48,131 48,131

As disclosed above, other reserves relate to actuarial gains/losses arising out of the
remeasurement of the retirement benefit obligation.

24 Grants

The balances represent grants from Commodities Fund for purchase of machinery for road
maintenance, construction of bridges and payment of farmers' arrears. Assets are amortized
over the life of the machinery. The movement in the year is as follows:

2020 2019

Shs'000 Shs'000

At start of year 469,973 76,721

Additions 115,650 397,582

Amortisation charge (4,330) (4,330)

At end of year 581,293 469,973
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25 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is calculated using the enacted income tax rate of 30% (2019: 30%). The gross
movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

2020 2019

Shs'000 Shs'000

At start of year 26,944 26,944
Credit to income statement (Note 13) (231,288) (432,998)
Credit to other comprehensive income -
(Over)/under provision of deferred income tax in prior year 262,372
Deferred income tax not recognized 231,288 170,626
At end of year 26,944 26,944

The deferred income tax assets and liabilities, deferred income tax charge/(credit) in the income
statements are attributable to the following items:

Charged/
Year ended 30 June 2020 (credited) (Credited
1 July 2019 to P/L to equity) 30 June 2020
Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
Deferred income tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment:
- on historical cost basis 468,303 (68,794) - 399,457
- on revaluation surplus 470,474 (66,794) - 403,680
Biological assets 102,482 - - 102,482
1,041,259 (135,640) - 905,619
Deferred income tax assets
Other temporary differences (584,163) (26,786) - (610,949)
Post-employment benefit obligation (115,930) 138,383 - 22,453
Tax losses (1,158,730) (207,245) - (1,365,975)
(1,858,823) (95,648) - (1,954,471)
Net deferred income tax (817,564) (231,288) - (1,048,851)
Deferred income tax not recognised (844,508) (231,288) - (1,075,795)
Final deferred income tax 26,944 - - 26,944
60



S5 T oy U e L S e U i N R T U B ot Rt B P e L ek i W S 3 e s e g G e L s R
South Nyanza Sugar Company Limited

Notes (continued)

25 Deferred income tax (continued)

Prior year
Year ended 30 June 2019 adjust Charged Charged 30 June
1 July 2018 to P/L to equity 2019
Shs'000 Shs’000’ Shs'000 Shs'000 Shs'000
Deferred income tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment:
- on historical cost basis 62,305 350,214 55,785 - 468,303
- on revaluation surplus 642,740 (91,375) (80,891) - 470,474
Biological assets
138,850 - (36,368) - 102,482
843,895 258,838 (61,474) - 1,041,259
Deferred income tax assets
Other temporary differences (5667,958) (63,764) 37,559 - (584,163)
Post-employment benefit obligation  (122,151) 1,635 4,586 - (115,930)
Tax losses (798,576) 55,661 (415,815) - (1,158,730)
(1,488,685) 3,633 (373,671) - (1,858,823)
Net deferred income tax asset (644,790) 262,371 (435,145) - (817,564)
Deferred income tax asset not
recognised (671,734) 262,371 (435,145) - (844,508)
Final deferred income tax 26,944 = - - 26,944
26 Trade and other payables
2020 2019
Shs'000 Shs'000
Trade payables 393,955 341,038
Customer payments in advance 69,066 82,238
Other payables and accrued expenses 4,426,911 3,584,476

4,889,932 4,007,753

The carrying amounts of the above payables and accrued expenses approximate to their fair value
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27 Borrowings 2020 2019
Shs'000 Shs'000

Commodities fund (SDF) loan 477,321 454,834
Government of Kenya (GOK/ODA) 818,969 794,628

Co op bank 758,978 345,532

KCB 26,549 41,858

Bank overdraft - 308,721

2,081,817 1,945,573

i) Maturity analysis
Non-current
Commaodities fund (SDF) loan = -

Co op bank 758,978 345,532
Current

Commodities fund (SDF) loan 477,321 454,834
KCB 26,549 41,858
Government of Kenya (GOK/ODA) 818,549 794,628

1,322,839, 1,291,320

Total GOK/CF loans 2,081,817 1,636,852
Bank overdraft - 308,721
Total borrowings 2,081,817 1,945,573

e Commodities Fund loans of Shs 477M had fallen due for payment as at 30.06.2020.
e GOK/ODA loans totalling Kshs 818.5M had fallen due for payment as at 30.06.2020.

e During the year, interest totalling to Kshs 366M was termed out as outstanding principal
in the month of December 2019. Consolidated principal of Kshs 712M is under a
moratorium to end January 2121.

e Loan from KCB for Insurance Premium Financing stood Kshs 26.5M at year end.

The carrying amount of the borrowings approximates to the fair value, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

Loans movement G.o0.K CF Co-op KCB Total

Shs ‘000 Shs’000 Shs ‘000 Shs ‘000 Shs ‘000
At start of year 794,628 454,834 345,532 41,858 1,636,853
Additions - - 366,171 - 366,171
Accrued interest | 24,341 22,487 47,275 1,430 95,532
Repayment - - - (16,738) (16,738)
Net movement 24,341 22,487 413,446 (15,309) 444 964
At end of year 818,969 477,321 758,978 26,549 2,081,817
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28 Cash generated from operations 2020 2019
Shs'000 Shs'000

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash generated from
operations
Loss before income tax (1,656,308) (1,358,342)
Adjustments for:
Interest income (Note 8) (19,471) (38,259)
Interest expense(Note 10) 155,657 151,765
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property plant & equipment 33,557 13,017
Changes in biological assets(Note 15) (24,940) (24,940)
Decrease due to harvest - -
Depreciation of property, plant and plant (Note 14) 219,683 278,119
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 15) (263) (51,464)
Items expensed from WIP (note 15) = -
Grant amortization (Note 24) (4,330) (4,330)

Post-employment benefit obligation

Changes in working capital:

- Inventories 90,157 67,055
- Trade and other receivables (9,290) (22,433)
- Outgrowers’ balances (206,145) 595,514
- Trade and other payables 1,480,478 598,299
Cash generated from operations 58,785 204,001

29 Retirement benefit obligations

The company operates a gratuity scheme based on employee remuneration and length of service.
The plan is internally funded.

The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are as follows:

2020 2019
Shs’000 Shs’000

Present value of unfunded obligations 406,293 386,433

The movement in the defined benefit obligation over the year was as follows:

2020 2019

Shs’000 Shs’000

At start of year 386,433 401,718

Payments made in the year (4,210) (15,285)

Remeasurement 24,070 0

Liability in the statement of financial position 406,293 386,433
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Notes (continued)

29 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

2020 2019

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:
2020 2019
-discount rate 13.25% 13.25%
-inflation 7.0% 7.0%
-salary increases 7.5% 7.5%

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is
as follows:

Salary increase sensitivity

At current salary
increase rate 1% Increase 1% Decrease

Shs’000 Shs’000 Shs’000
At 30 June 2019
Present value of obligation 386,433 454,218 387,092
Percentage changes - 8.45% (7.57%)
At 30 June 2020
Present value of obligation 406,292 454,218 387,092
Percentage changes - 8.45% (7.57%)

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set based on published statistics and
experience in the industry.

Since the bulk of the benefits payable under the scheme are salary related and there are no pensions
paid from the scheme, the sensitivity of the liability to a change in the salary escalation assumption is
expected to be consistent with the sensitivity to the discount rates
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30 Related party transactions

The Company is controlled by the Government of Kenya. IAS 24, ‘Related party disclosures’ clarifies
and simplifies the definition of a related party and removes the requirement for government-related
entities to disclose details of all transactions with the government and other government-related
entities.

i) Key management compensation

Key management includes executive Directors and members of senior management. The
compensation paid or payable to key management for employee services is shown below:

2020 2019
Shs'000 Shs'000
Salaries and other short-term employment benefits 21,103 32,254

ii) Directors’ remuneration
Remuneration as management 960 960
Fees and allowances for services as director 9,793 24,853
10,753 25,813

31 Contingent liabilities

The Company has contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims arising in the ordinary course of
business. The Company also has some open tax items under discussion with the revenue authority.
A number of litigation cases regarding burnt over-mature cane which the Company was unable to
harvest and traffic accident cases have been lodged at law courts.

A summary of the pending cases and claims against the Company is as follows:-

2020 2019

Shs'000 Shs'000

Farmers’ cases 180,000 380,000
Staff cases - 100
180,100 380,100

The directors have made a provision in the financial statements amounting to Shs 214 million based
on legal advice. The Directors do not believe that any significant additional liability will arise from the
resolution of these matters.
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Notes (continued)
32 Commitments
Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date but not recognized in the financial
statements is as follows:

2020 2019

Shs'000 Shs'000

Authorized but not contracted 171,480 371,780
Authorized and contracted 81,613 92,612
288098 463,392

Five year financial performance summary

30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19  30-Jun-18 30-Jun-17  30-Jun-16

Shs’'000 Shs’000 Shs’'000 Shs'000 Shs’000
Statement of comprehensive
income
Revenue 353,973 2,674,078 2,514,125 4,996,667 4,755,640
Operating loss (1,500,651) (1,193,799) (1,981,976) (187,5673) (774,243))
Loss before income tax (1,656,308) (1,345,564) (2,109,764) (296,782)  (878,639)
Statement of financial
position
Total assets 5,486,103 5,992,808 6,299,750 6,299,750 4,761,753
Total liabilities 7,993,407 6,843,804 5,792,403 5,792,403 4,322,118
Total equity (2,507,304) (850,996 507,346 507,346 439,635
Net working capital (5,365,488) (4,473,752) (3,606,875) (3,606,875) (1,822,397)

Five year operational
performance summary

30-Jun-20  30-Jun-19  30-Jun-18 30-Jun-17  30-Jun-16

Milled cane (tons) 133,270 420,486 420,973 602,711 757,143

Sugar sold (tons) 4,540 31,351 32,491 53,472 67,733

Rendement (%) 3.49 7.42 7.56 8.91 8.88
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South Nyanza Sugar Company Limited

PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP OF AUDITOR RECOMMENDATIONS

The following i
management comm

various issues as S

resolved

Ref No. |

s the summary of issues raised by the external auditor for 2017/2018 accounts, and
ents that were provided to the auditor. We have nominated focal persons to resolve the
hown below with the associated time frame within which we expect the issues to be

Observation from auditors

Management comments

Status, person
responsible
and timeframe

As reported in the previous year,
Receivables from Outgrowers

of these balances.

We emphasize that the balance

previously not uploaded reduced

Reconciliation
closed inin F/Y

Going concern

Financial

the company's ability to continue as a
going concern and further implies that
the Company's  existence s
dependent upon continued support
from the shareholders and creditors.

performance for the period
under review was attributed to
lower recoveries due to delayed
factory rehabilitation. With the
current ongoing maintenance,
efficiency is projected to
improve to over 85% translating
to increased revenue and
healthier working capital.

Increase the Company's
capacity for branded sugar
given that branded sugar is
more profitable.

The Company is currently
undertaking low cost
approaches by operating under
austerity budget. This will help
in management of payroll cost
to contain the wage bill.
Organization review program is
also ongoing with a view to put
in place a lean and efficient staff

) significantly and in now included in | 2018/2019
The company's bglance S.heEt at 30 the AMS. \>/a|idation of these
June 2018 c-o.mpnsed varlous . accounts is a continuous process.
balances arising from transactions The balance of Kshs.351M is now
with Out-growers. There were classified as a specific provision
several unsupported transactions because there is an attribution of
and the physical verification of individual balances. Effectively
farmer’s plots revealed some locking this data now provides
exceptions. We were, therefore, ;%zrgrrizro%rglger:rsis in the final
. L . gup
unable to obtain sufficient audit earlier/legacy problems.
evidence to conclude on the validity Combining this scenario with
excessive prudence evidenced by
the hefty provision for outgrower
receivable should have led to a
favorable opinion in accounting for
services to farmers.
Management has outlined APM is
interventions to mitigate the risks | ongoing.
statements indicate the | g follows: Startup is
existence of a material uncertainty, projected to be
which may cast significant doubt on | 1 part of the less than optimal by the end of

August 2020.
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